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GSA City Pair Program Partnership Meeting

November 10th, 2005

Purpose:

The purpose of today’s session was to update contractors and customers on issues for FY06 and FY07. Today’s session was not a pre-solicitation meeting. The FY07 pre-solicitation meeting is scheduled for 02/07/06. Brief updates were given by Paula Hunter (American Express), George Coyle (American Airlines), Jem Bennett (Delta Airlines), Bob Haster (Southwest Airlines), Captain Andrew Jones (DOD), Clinton Green (NASA), Tim Burke (E-Gov Travel Services), Linda Smith (GSA), Jerry Ellis (GSA), Rick Freda (GSA), and Gene Lee (GSA). Questions were taken following each update.  See Presentations.
Material: 

For today’s session, the following documents were presented to the group:

· Session Agenda 

· City Pair Program Presentation (Linda Smith)

· New Programs for FY07 Presentation (Jerry Ellis)

· CARWIS and Direct Contact Presentation (Gene Lee)

All documents were prepared and presented by GSA, Office of Transportation and Property Management, Travel and Transportation Contracting Division.

Opening Remarks and Introductions:

Becky Koses and Barnaby Brasseux kicked off the session. Both stressed the project objective of providing a higher efficiency of services to customer at the lowest cost possible. Eddie Murphy stated the purpose of today’s session, introduced the GSA contracting team, and asked each attendee to introduce him/herself by company and role.

Meeting  

During today’s session, contractors and customers were provided updates on the following:   

· Travel Management Companies (TMCs) (Paula Hunter, American Express)

· Government Transportation Requests (George Coyle, American Airlines)

· Code Share Agreements (Jem Bennett, Delta Airlines)

· Overall Update on Southwest Airlines (Bob Haster, Southwest Airlines)

· DoD Customer News (Captain Andrew Jones, DoD)

· CCP Usage (Clinton Green, NASA)

· E-Gov Travel Services (Tim Burke, GSA)

· Changes to FY06 (Linda Smith, GSA)

· GTRs (Linda Smith, GSA)

· Groups (Linda Smith, GSA)

· Minimum Service Requirements for International Flights (Linda Smith, GSA)

· Travel Solutions Schedule (TSS) (Jerry Ellis, GSA) 

· FedFare Pilot Program (Jerry Ellis, GSA) 

· Charter Services and Sales Program (Jerry Ellis, GSA) 

· Fuel Surcharges (Jerry Ellis, GSA) 

· FedRooms (Vince Aquilino, GSA)

· E-News and Direct Connects (Gene Lee, GSA)

The following matrix provides highlights of today’s discussions, questions and answers, and resulting action items. 

	Topic & Speaker
	Discussion
	Comments & Questions

	Travel Management Companies (TMCs) 

Paula Hunter American Express
	A look a head at TMC Managers.  The roles of Expense Managers and Travel Managers have changed. Corporate spending is up. Customers are concerned and focus is expanding to include issues such as security, ability to track travels, etc. Travel Managers wear many hats and their status within the organizations are growing rapidly. 

The dynamics of the industry now include four (4) areas of focus: competition from online travel agencies and global prices, distribution providers, price of oil, and how the industry will evolve/reform in 2006.   


	

	Government Transportation Request

George Coyle American Airlines
	There are two types of GTRs: regular and one-time. GTRs are done manually and are costly. Some GTRs were overturned due to extension from agencies that are out of date. There is an abuse factor, whereby GTRs are granted to non-government employees.    

Changes to GSA agreement to include use of GTRs as only valid for domestic and emergency travel will result in great savings.


	

	Code Share Agreements

Jem Bennett

Delta Airlines
	Issues and concerns with Code Share Agreements. Domestic codes agreements generally do not include revenue sharing and are thus related to revenue loss. One carrier cannot impose a fare on another carrier. 

When reserving a flight, it must be clearly noted when the flight is operated by another carrier. 


	

	Overall update on Southwest Airlines

Bob Haster Southwest Airlines


	Southwest is doing well despite cost of fuel. Looking at higher airfare charges for GSA next year.

New SWABIZ online products are being used within some states. The online product offers no fees ticketing, assigned seating, no change fee charges, and reduced fares. Southwest would like for GSA to utilize SWABIZ.  

Southwest will begin flights to New Orleans soon, and is now going to Houston, Nashville, Dallas, Orlando, Tampa, and Mississippi.

  
	

	Customer News

Capt. Andrew Jones

DoD
	Have seen an increase in regional jets over the past few years; this affects troops, who tend to have a lot of baggage. DoD would like to see more favorable scoring on wide bodies.   

DoD thanks all carriers for their support to troops and their families. 


	Comment (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): Presented cautions to Andrews with assistance to regional jet over carriers or large vessels because could be more costly for agencies. 

	Use of CCP

Clinton Green

NASA
	Customers are coming up with excuses within the CPP to use first class travel. Customers must use CPP fares first.   

New TMC in March for CI Travel is the incumbent for NASA.  NASA doing quarterly reviews to determine issues and corrective actions. 

Automatic email scoring card for travelers allows NASA to determine how CIT is doing.  

Travel Risk Management Company, iJET International, is able to track each traveler in overseas locations, can locate traveler at all times for agency and family notifications. 

Gain Sharing Program allows the government save money. Travelers, who, for example, stay with family, friend, etc. and provide savings on travel expenses, receive a percentage back reward. 

  
	Comment (Gene Lee, GSA): iJet International was just awarded a GSA Schedules contract. Other federal agencies may order their services.  Please contact Gene Lee (gene.lee@gsa.gov) for further details.

	E-Gov Travel Services

Tim Burke

GSA
	Hope to have E-Gov installed by FY06, but have some areas in need of improvement. These include the graphic user interface and understanding of Code Sharing by users. . 

Area of concern over the next few months: customers are buying TMC directly versus going to vendor. TMC still plays a major role. 

Provided the following statistics: on non-contract, 61% were self-booked and 44% were not self-booked; on contract, 39% were self-booked and 56% were not self-booked. 

Currently, five (5) agencies are exceeding 50% online usage. 

   
	Question: With regard to the 61% figure on non-contract self-booked, what were your expectations? 

GSA Response: Agencies manage their own travel programs. We expected a figure more in the range of 30%-40%.  

Question (Denny Clifford, NW Airlines): With regard to GDS fees. As E-Gov rolls out, duplicate bookings will become a factor. Do you have any data on what that will be like?

GSA Response: Let’s have a focus group on this issue within 30 days. Because of funding limitations, the government should be in-line with industry solutions. We want industry to come forward with ideas.

Some vendors are hitting the GDS and some are not.  Focus group would address the issues and determine process for not hitting GDS. Focus group can determine the number of hits and cause for the hits. Note: See Action Items Section.

   

	Changes to FY06

Linda Smith

GSA
	Code Shares:  

--Domestic

· Service on offered codes shares only

· At the time of awards each vendor will offer a listing of carriers for code shares

· Need to get the word out to travelers  

--International 

· Service on offered codes shares only

· Offered on a market-by market basis, or 

· If no specific market identified

· All services on offered codes share partner available. 

GSA City Pair Group will come out to agencies to explain code shares and training travels, if requested.


	Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): For pricing of fares for blocks of code shares. Can carriers do flight restrictions? 

GSA Response: The website will be updated to show which carriers offer code share services at http://www.gsa.gov/citypairs.  A look at GDS will show which flights have code shares.      

	GTRs

Linda Smith

GSA
	Government Transportation Requests (GTRs)

· For international air travel and other travel related expenses  

· Or domestic air travel, only under special circumstances and for travel related expenses   

· Special domestic circumstances are:

· acts of God, emergency situations, and

· when purchasing a domestic ticket in the USA in conjunction with travel that originated overseas 
Many areas cannot handle manual processes related to GTR. GTRs limit participation and competition. Agencies must move toward use of charge cards for international travel. 


	Question (DOD): What will happen to GTRs?

GSA Response: Agencies need to move towards charge cards. 

Question (DOD): Is there a transition plan? 

GSA Response: No. Transition time has already occurred.

Comment (Denny Clifford, NW Airlines): Agencies may get shut out, if airlines stop accepting GTRs.

Comment (Paula Hunter, American Express): When purchasing a ticket overseas that will include travel in the US – this may be a case where GTRs are still relevant. Some counties do not accept credit cards.   



	Groups 

Linda Smith

GSA
	For the most part they remain the same for FY06. The difference is with groups of ten (10) or more. 

For such non-mandatory groups: 

· Contract carriers may offer YCA or other group fare, or

· Group may choose carrier that best meets the group needs

· Follow that carrier’s commercial group reservation, ticketing, and cancellation. This is a new change. 

Asked for ideas on how best to identify group and ticket designators for groups from industry.  

Ticket designator for groups 

· Identifier for audits

Contract carriers offer YCA to groups

· Commercial group penalties allowed on YCA

Group uses mandatory charge cards but not YCA = 
potential debit memo. 


	Comment (Tom Billone, United Airlines): A major issue for United is, with regard to groups, what the government will tolerate with regard to cancellation fees, etc.

Comment: A group must have a single mission; there must be an integrity to a group.  Normally air industry has standards for cancellation and fees for group traveling.  It is up to the carrier to define their commercial group policy and what would apply.  The only exception is that deposits are not applicable to the government/military groups.

Comment: Non-mandatory users should have non-mandatory cards. 

Question (Paula Hunter, American Express): In the case where the people come from different locations, this is not a group. Correct? 

GSA Response: Correct. Not a group in that case.  

	Looking Ahead to FY07

Linda Smith

GSA
	Increase requirement of International Participation

Change MINIMUM SERVICE REQUIREMENTS

· Relaxing requirements

· Allow 2 connections

· Now only allow 1

· Allow up to 5 hours in connecting time 

Currently at 3 hours allowed for international travel

These new requirements would apply to further point destinations only such as USA to Africa, Middle East, and Asia.  Right now, we receive few offers for these city pairs because carrier’s flight schedules don't meet the minimum. 
	Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): If Delta has YCA and code shares with Northwest, when the agency tries to book a flight, is it blocked because Northwest is not picking up YCA fare?

GSA Response: Correct.  

Question: Are TMCs aware that, if a flight is unavailable, another carrier may be used?

GSA Response: Yes.

Question: What is the purpose of 5 hour allowed time for international versus 3 hours?  Is it cheaper? 

GSA Response: Feedback from travelers say 3 hours is not long enough for immigration and security. The policy states up to 5 hours, not a minimum of 5 hours. 3 hours can still apply.  



	New Programs

Jerry Ellis

GSA
	Pilot programs:

Travel Solutions Schedule

· Non CPP market discount program (FedFare)

· Air Charter Services and Sales

Background 

· Input form industry

· Input government agencies

· Success of dual fare program

· Independent search data:

· $720 Million on non CPP Fares
· $7 Million on Government (non DoD) Charter Operations$720
· Looking to incorporate industry best business practices to the greatest extent possible million on non-CPP fares $7 million on government (non-DOD) charter operations 

Looking to incorporate 
Looking to enhance total travel solutions for the government customer.


	

	TSS Schedule

Jerry Ellis

GSA
	How do schedules work?

GSA offers multiple vendors with their capabilities and products/discount offered to all government agencies that may then select business based on need and best value. 

Carriers receive the government travel business based on best value to the agency.
GSA partners with airlines, charter operators and customer agencies.
For more information regarding the GSA schedule, please visit: www.gsa.gov/schedule

	

	FedFare Pilot Program

Jerry Ellis

GSA


	Our Concept:

· All markets served which are not awarded under CPP program

· Percentage discounted off of normal published fares

· May offer discounts in more than one fare based code

· include a special ticket designator for tracking and reporting purposes
· multiple year contract after first year percentage discounts may be adjusted up to 4 times per year 

· Open contract - may add/delete markets as service changes

If pilot program is successful, lower volume CPP markets may move to FedFares program.
	Question (Jem Bennett, Delta airlines): With sales and charters, are we talking about domestic mission under DoD? Will charter companies be considered for the schedule program?  

GSA Response: Yes. 

Question: How will rates be assessed? 

GSA Response: Once on the schedule, using the normal GDS. This is why we ask for ticket designators. 

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): What’s the advantage to airlines? Why shouldn’t they just publish fares? What is the advantage of schedule program versus passenger going to the public?

GSA Response: The advantage is preferable treatment. This is a stand-alone contract. Travelers may be required to use the schedule.  GSA is looking at this.  Travelers use this vehicle, which will increase the market for the carriers.  

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): How may markets are solicited on CCP.  What is in it for the carriers?  Can you make the program more appealing to the carriers? 

GSA Response: 724 million dollars in non-CCP.  This funding would be available via the schedule.    

Comment (Paula Hunter, American Express): Such a plan is not in the best interest of private industry.

Comment (Alaska Airlines): I agree that this is not in the best interest of private industry. A major concern is who will have viewership of these fares.

Comment: There is no incentive for private industry under such a plan.  

Comment: This plan adds an additional step, whereby we will need to go to published fares. 

Question (Lufthansa Airlines): Is the program for both domestic and international flights?

GSA Response: Yes.  

Question: Are the discount rates blanket set by CPP?

GSA Response: No.  Carriers will propose their own discounts (or range of discounts)      



	Charter and Sales Program

Jerry Ellis

GSA
	Agencies were doing their own charter. 

Full range of charter and aircraft sales opportunities

· Single engine to jumbo jet

Passenger  - Cargo – “Combi” 

Charter opportunities include domestic, international, within Europe/Asia and Continental U.S.
US flag and foreign Flag

Fly America flag rules apply.  Foreign flag opportunities apply “in country” and where no US flag carrier has service rights.


	

	Fuel Surcharges

Jerry Ellis

GSA
	Presently not provided to airline carriers. 

CPP request the following information from airlines so a business case analysis may be performed for future contract consideration. 

1. How does carrier buy fuel, frequency, and quantity?

2. How do corporate and state local government contracts handle fuel surcharges?  Provide examples.
3. What is/was the impact of fuel cost to the carriers over the past two years? 

4. What are your carrier’s plans with respect to managing fuel going forward?  Assessment by GSA will be done in time of FY07 solicitation. 

Any and all information shared with GSA will be confidential.
	Comment (Craig Blemly, United Airlines): I have to take issue with the claim that the government has no power to act on the current contract. It states specifically that the CO has the power to modify pricing. 

GSA Response: The contract vehicle is Firm Fixed Price. You are asking to add a line item, not an increase in price. We do not have this flexibility in firm fixed priced contracts. There are other contract types available, such as fixed price with economic price adjustments that can be evaluated for FY07.  Remember, we did not say you could not charge for fuel.  What we said for FY06 is that you had to include your fuel costs into your offered prices.   

Question (George Coyle, American Airlines): Is there a fuel surcharge with rental cars? 

GSA Response: That needs to be looked into. Note: See Action Item Section. 

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): Is FAR an impediment to a surcharge?

GSA Response: For this specific type of contract (firm fixed price), there is not an ability to add new fees.   

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): Why is it that we cannot apply a fuel surcharge under this contract?

GSA Response: Airlines are under a Firm Fixed Price contract. We cannot add a line item for a fuel surcharge under such a contract, as may be done with a Fixed Price contract with economic price adjustment provisions. 

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): Why does this need to be Firm? Can the government change the contract?

GSA Response: For FY07, yes. 

Question (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): How will our responding to the questions you ask change the concept of a fuel surcharge? 

GSA Response: It won’t for FY06 for the reasons discussed earlier.  The information you provide will serve as part of our market research to determine whether it is in the government’s best interest to change the contract type to allow an economic price adjustment.   

GSA Comment: The government has looked into airline surcharges and discovered that each airline treats surcharges differently. Thus we need to know the logic behind how you apply fuel surcharges.  



	FedRooms

Vincent Aquilino

GSA
	320 hotels currently in the program and rates are on average below per diem.    

Marketing campaign is going on. 


	

	e-News and Direct Connects

Gene Lee

GSA
	CARWIS is available except for the web interface Submissions should be made via email to ergene.lee@gsa.gov. 

Direct Connects to agencies and vendor. ETS system and airline carriers must be added to current contract. When is not known, however. Currently in discussions with E-Gov travel. 

Clarification on why Request for Market Estimates Letter to federal agencies has changed this year (previously asked for only new markets to be identified, whereas this year requesting all markets).  Market estimates are based on two sources: 1) SmartPay charge card data and 2) agency requests.  For FY07, we look at FY05 actual travel data rather than FY06, because that is the only available data from Smartpay charge card. Rather than confuse the federal agencies, we are asking federal agencies to identify ALL markets they need instead of only new markets.  FY08 will be completely web-based. 


	Question: To what extent have TMCs been involved with direct connects?

GSA Response: We are still in the preliminary stages and it’s too soon to say. 

Comment (Denny Clifford, Northwest Airlines): I think it’s a good idea to workout a time frame so that we may move forward with direct connects. 

GSA Response: Direct connect can be discussed at the focus group that Tim Burke was mentioning.

	Closing Comments


	Craig Blemly, United Airlines, wanted to thank the government for working with the airline industry to find solutions to problems.  
	


Action Items

	Discussion
	Owner
	Deliverables


	Due Date

	GDS Fees
	Tim Burke
	Would like to hold focus group to evaluate GDS’s.  Some vendors are being assessed fees and some are not.  The focus group would evaluate process to determine when and why fees are assessed.  Group would like to include the issue of direct connects in this focus group. 


	Within 30 Days

	Educate Travelers on CBA
	Linda Smith
	Offer to provide training to agencies and vendor exceptions, which allow CBA.  Travels should be utilizing Credit Card processes when traveling.  


	As needed

	Need a listing of ticket designators for each carrier
	Linda Smith
	Carriers will determine ticket designators and provide a listing to Linda Smith.  Linda will contact each carrier to determine due date for sending information. 


	

	FY07 proposed changes for International travel 
	Attendees
	Attendees are encouraged to provide feedback to CPP team on FY07 proposed changes.  Comments may be sent to Linda Smith. 


	

	Copies of slides presented today
	Jerry Ellis
	Jerry will provide attendees a copy of Fuel Surcharge slide, which outlines the information needed for the CPP Business Case Analysis regarding changing the contract type to allow an economic price adjustment. 


	11/11/05

	Answers to questions related to fuel for surcharge discussion
	Carriers
	Attendees will make every effort to respond to questions regarding fuel purchase practices to Jerry Ellis no later than the 12/15/05.   


	12/15/05

	Comparison of fuel surcharge allowances 
	CPP Team
	The CPP Team will contact Maureen Rinehard to get DoD point of contact for rental car to determine how they manage fuel.  A review of current contract vehicles for rental car and freight will be done to determine if and why fuel surcharges are allowed.  Becky will present finding to carriers. 


	

	Copies of Presentations 
	CPP Team
	The CPP team will send a soft copy of all of today’s power point presentation. 
	11/14/05
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